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          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  Welcome to the

          3  Land Use Subcommittee on Landmarks, Public Siting

          4  and Maritime Uses.

          5                 I am Jessica Lappin, the Chair,

          6  joined by Council Member Jimmy Oddo from Staten

          7  Island, Council Member Charles Barron from Brooklyn,

          8  Council Member Maria del Carmen Arroyo from the

          9  Bronx, Council Member Leroy Comrie from Queens, and

         10  Council Member John Liu from Queens.

         11                 We are going to start with a public

         12  hearing on the Greenwich Street Historic District

         13  Extension, which is Item Number 20065513, and Diane

         14  Jackier from the Landmarks Preservation Commission.

         15                 MS. JACKIER:  Good morning

         16  councilmembers.

         17                 My name is Diane Jackier, Director of

         18  External Affairs for the Landmarks Preservation

         19  Commission.

         20                 I am here today to testify on the

         21  Commission's designation of the Greenwich Village

         22  Historic District Extension in Manhattan.

         23                 On October 18th, 2005, the Landmarks

         24  Commission held a public hearing on the proposed

         25  designation of the Greenwich Village Historic
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          2  District Extension.  Thirty- six people spoke in

          3  favor, including State Assembly Member Deborah

          4  Glick, and representatives of State Senator Thomas

          5  Duane, State Assemblyman, Borough President Elect

          6  Scott Stringer, City Council Speaker Christine

          7  Quinn, Manhattan Community Board 2, the Municipal

          8  Art Society, the Historic Districts Council, the

          9  Landmarks Conservancy, the Metropolitan Chapter of

         10  the Victorian Society in America, the Greenwich

         11  Village Society for Historic Preservation, the

         12  Society for the Architecture of the City, the

         13  Greenwich Village Community Task Force, Place

         14  Matters, Federation to Preserve the Greenwich

         15  Village Waterfront in Great Port, Westbeth Artist

         16  Residence Council, Hell's Kitchen Neighborhood, St.

         17  Luke's Place Block Association, West 13th Street-

         18  100 Block Association, and the Perry Street Block

         19  Association.

         20                 Three owners testified in favor of

         21  designation, and three owners testified against

         22  designation.

         23                 In addition, the Commission received

         24  numerous communications in support of designation,

         25  including one from the Bedford Barrow (phonetic)
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          2  Commerce Block Association.

          3                 On May 2nd, 2006, the Commission

          4  voted to designate the Greenwich Village Historic

          5  District Extension a New York City Historic

          6  District.

          7                 The Greenwich Village Extension

          8  consists of 45 buildings that represent several

          9  phases of construction, spanning nearly two

         10  centuries of development along Greenwich Village's

         11  Hudson River waterfront.  The architecture

         12  illustrates the areas long history as a place of

         13  dwelling, industry and commerce, and is a rare

         14  surviving example of this once typical development

         15  pattern on Manhattan's West Side waterfront.  Seven

         16  buildings in the extension date from the first

         17  period of development, which was around 1819 to 1853

         18  when Greenwich Village began to grow as people moved

         19  to the area to escape the crowding and epidemics of

         20  Lower Manhattan.

         21                 These buildings were constructed as

         22  residences, including the Circa 1819 vernacular row

         23  house at 132 Charles Street, the 1834 Federal- style

         24  residence at 131 Charles Street, and the 1829

         25  Federal-style row houses of 651 to 655 Washington
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          2  Street.

          3                 At the turn of the century, as the

          4  Hudson River surpassed the East River as the primary

          5  artery for maritime commerce, and Gansevoort and

          6  Chelsea Piers were constructed, West Street north of

          7  Christopher Street became the busiest section of New

          8  York's commercial waterfront.  The area of the

          9  Historic District Extension became the locus for a

         10  number of large storage warehouses, as well as

         11  transportation- related commerce and firms

         12  associated with food products.

         13                 In 1961, Jane Jacobs who lived in the

         14  vicinity of the extension, rallied neighborhood

         15  residents to oppose Mayor Robert Wagner's plan to

         16  have the 12 blocks bounded by West, Christopher,

         17  Hudson, and West 11th Street, and another two blocks

         18  along West Street, south of Christopher street,

         19  declared an urban renewal site.  The neighbor's

         20  success, along with the publication of Jacobs'

         21  influential book, The Death and Life of Great

         22  American Cities, that same year established her as a

         23  renowned critic of urbanism.

         24                 Today, the buildings in the Greenwich

         25  Village Historic District Extension represent a
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          2  thriving neighborhood that is a distinctive part of

          3  the history and character of Greenwich Village and

          4  New York City.

          5                 The Commission urges you to affirm

          6  the designation.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  Of the 45

          8  buildings, you said there were three people who

          9  testified in support, and three in opposition, was

         10  there correspondence to the Commission from any of

         11  the other 39 owners?

         12                 MS. JACKIER:  Not that I have any

         13  knowledge of here.  There were six owners who

         14  testified at the hearing we held, three in favor,

         15  three opposed.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  Any questions

         17  from my colleagues?

         18                 Council Member Barron.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Good morning,

         20  how are you today?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  Good morning,

         22  fine, thank you.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  I just wanted

         24  to commend the Commission for including the pre-

         25  Civil War History, I think it was called Far West
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          2  Village, Far West Village, was it called that

          3  prior--?

          4                 MS. JACKIER:  Historically called- I

          5  mean, I do not think that that is what it was

          6  historically called but--.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  I think it

          8  was, oh okay, I was just looking here--.

          9                 MS. JACKIER:  I mean, that is what it

         10  is, yes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: -- from the

         12  pre- Colonial Period.  And they did mention the

         13  area's involvement in slavery, freed slaves, and

         14  some were still slaves.

         15                 So, I just wanted to know if the

         16  Commission would support reparations for the- since

         17  you admitted it, would the Commission now support

         18  reparations for the descendants of those who are

         19  still here today, like myself, and John too?  You

         20  have to make your own movement but I think, would

         21  you consider that?

         22                 MS. JACKIER:  It is not something

         23  that I came prepared to comment on.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Oh okay, so

         25  we will have further discussion on it.
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          2                 Thank you for the inclusion.  I think

          3  this is all we wanted- it to be a part of the

          4  history, and I commend you for that.  I thank you

          5  for including that.

          6                 MS. JACKIER:  You are welcome.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  Thank you.

          8                 We have some other people signed up

          9  to testify. Andrew Berman, Gregory Brender, who is

         10  representing Assembly Member Deborah Glick and

         11  Susanna Aaron.

         12                 Andrew Berman did not indicate in

         13  favor or opposition, and neither did Susanna Aaron,

         14  so if you could clarify that, and all three of you

         15  can come up together or however.

         16                 MR. BERMAN:  Good morning, Council

         17  members, and thank you for the opportunity to

         18  testify this morning.

         19                 My name is Andrew Berman, Executive

         20  Director of the Greenwich Village Society for

         21  Historic Preservation, and I am here today to

         22  testify strongly in support of designation of the

         23  Greenwich Village Historic District Designation, and

         24  the Weehawken Street Historic District.

         25                 These designation come after more
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          2  than 40 years of effort by Village residents and

          3  preservationists to see the invaluable character of

          4  the Greenwich Village waterfront preserved.

          5  Unfortunately in that time, many important historic

          6  buildings were compromised or lost.

          7                 However, these two district

          8  designations capture a significant piece of the

          9  Villages's notable waterfront history, which extends

         10  back nearly 200 years.  These two districts'

         11  collection of wood frame houses, early 19th Century

         12  merchant houses, stables, sailors hotels, Romanesque

         13  industrial warehouses, and 19th Century churches,

         14  schools and police stations preserve a unique slice

         15  of our City's maritime history, which can now be

         16  appreciated in perpetuity.

         17                 We look forward, not only to the

         18  approval of these two districts' designation, but to

         19  the Landmarks Preservation Commission moving forward

         20  with designation of eight other individual landmarks

         21  in this neighborhood, which were part of the City's

         22  preservation plan for the area as presented to the

         23  public in June of 2005.

         24                 Collectively, these will help ensure

         25  that a neighborhood which has probably seen some of
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          2  the most intense development pressure anywhere in

          3  New York City over the last decade will retain its

          4  most important historic elements, which contribute

          5  so strongly to the City's culture and identity.

          6                 Without these designations,

          7  undoubtedly little if not nothing of the historic

          8  buildings of this neighborhood would be left in very

          9  little time.  These designations resulted from the

         10  public's hard work and decades of activism, an open

         11  mind and discerning eye on the part of the Landmarks

         12  Preservation Commission, and the cooperation and

         13  advocacy of our elected officials, including Council

         14  Speaker Quinn, State Senator Tom Duane, Assembly

         15  Member Deborah Glick, and Borough President Scott

         16  Stringer.

         17                 Out of respect for all of these

         18  efforts, and most importantly, in recognition of the

         19  historic value of this neighborhood, I hope that you

         20  will approve today's designations.

         21                 As a final comment, I just want to

         22  mention that in the process of our advocating for

         23  these designations, I know we received letters of

         24  support from many property owners in the districts,

         25  including several co- op and condo boards, so I know
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          2  we have letters on file from certainly more than

          3  three property owners.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  Thank you, and I

          5  did want to state for the record, particularly with

          6  Diane Jackier here, that the Speaker is very much in

          7  support of this designation but would like to see

          8  the other eight properties that you referenced

          9  designated, and are particularly passionate about

         10  that, and going to continue to work with the

         11  community and the Landmarks Preservation Commission

         12  to make sure that happens.

         13                 MR. BRENDER:  Good morning, and thank

         14  you for the opportunity to testify.

         15                 My name is Gregory Brender, I am here

         16  on behalf of State Assembly Member Deborah Glick.

         17                 As a state assembly member

         18  representing the Far West Village, as well as other

         19  historic neighborhoods, I am grateful for the

         20  opportunity to present testimony in support of the

         21  expansion of the Greenwich Village Historic District

         22  to include three blocks between Christopher and

         23  Perry Streets, and the creation of a Weehawken

         24  Street Historic District.

         25                 While I am grateful for these
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          2  additions, I must begin by emphasizing my strong

          3  belief that the entire Far West Village must be

          4  preserved.  I am pleased that the proposed

          5  designations will move us much further towards that

          6  goal, but more work needs to be done.

          7                 Many in the community fought for the

          8  Far West Village to be included in the Greenwich

          9  Village Historic District when it was designated in

         10  1969.  It is now clear that the City was in error

         11  not to have done so, and large, out of character

         12  developments such as the Richard Meyer Towers on

         13  Perry and West Street, and One Morton Square are

         14  evidence of the need for stronger protections to

         15  preserve the character of this neighborhood.

         16                 I am glad that the City has been

         17  working with the community to protect this

         18  neighborhood.  Last year's rezoning of much of the

         19  Far West Village was a welcomed sign of the City's

         20  understanding of the importance of historic

         21  neighborhoods.  The Landmark Preservations

         22  Commission has now proposed designation of areas

         23  which are absolutely worthy of such protection.

         24                      The proposed Weehawken Street

         25  Historic District preserves one of New York's oldest
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          2  and most distinctive streets. The district contains

          3  many 19th and early- 20th century Federal style

          4  townhouses.  Overall the buildings in the proposed

          5  districts are small in scale, and constructed from

          6  historic materials.  The creation of a Weehawken

          7  Street Historic District should ensure that other

          8  development on this street meets these standards.

          9                 The proposed extension of the

         10  Greenwich Village Historic District to include three

         11  blocks between Christopher and Perry Street, also

         12  contains many notable structures, such as St.

         13  Veronica's Roman Catholic Church, a red Gothic

         14  Church, built in 1890 which contains the AIDS

         15  Memorial in the Village, and P.S. 107, a 19th

         16  century school house.  In addition, the homes in the

         17  district showcase a history of popular architectural

         18  styles in the late 19th and early- 20th centuries.

         19  I am glad that these structures will also be

         20  protected by Landmark designation.

         21                 In the Far West Village as in other

         22  historic neighborhoods throughout the City,

         23  landmarking is an essential component of good

         24  planning.  It is not only the individual buildings,

         25  but also the overall historic character of the Far
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          2  West Village that makes it unique.

          3                 Therefore, it is particularly

          4  important that the Far West Village have Landmark

          5  Districts, and not only Landmark buildings.  This

          6  allows the City with the communities participation

          7  to regulate in some way the appearance and shape of

          8  new development in the district.

          9                 I urge the City Council to approve

         10  the designation of the Weehawken Street Historic, as

         11  well as the extension of the Greenwich Village

         12  Historic District.

         13                 However, we must view these actions

         14  not as an endpoint in preserving the Far West

         15  Village, but rather, a very important first step in

         16  doing so.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 MS. AARON:  My name is Susanna Aaron,

         19  and I am an owner of 689 Washington Street, and I am

         20  here representing myself and my neighbor at 691.

         21                 I have to apologize, I am a little

         22  nervous, not as experienced as these guys in doing

         23  this.

         24                 You asked if I was for or against.  I

         25  grew up in the Village, and I am absolutely for the
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          2  designation of the extension of this district, but I

          3  am in an unusual position of requesting to be carved

          4  out of it.

          5                 Ever since I learned about it last

          6  year, I lie on the edge of the district, I requested

          7  to be carved out, and my request has been ignored.

          8  So, I am here requesting that again, and at the

          9  minimum, requesting that language in the designation

         10  report that regards my property reflect, what I

         11  think, are very legitimate concerns.

         12                 My house was built in 1980, and as a

         13  result is one of the newest houses in this district,

         14  and yet, it was built to look like a 19th century

         15  house.  My concern is that the day that I want to

         16  make any alterations to my house, it will not be

         17  regarded any differently, any proposals for change

         18  will not be regarded any differently than if it were

         19  an actual historic house.  My house has no intrinsic

         20  historical value, but it looks like it does, and

         21  therefore, I would like to, at a very minimum, see

         22  language in the designation report that says that my

         23  house is non- contributory.  Or, I would like to see

         24  language on the policy that shows a distinct

         25  difference in attitude towards newer houses.  The
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          2  designation report on the original Greenwich Village

          3  Historic District does not have any language like

          4  that.  It is intentionally written broadly because,

          5  in the end, this is all about artistic discretion,

          6  aesthetic discretion, but I feel that I will be

          7  penalized for having a house that was built in 1980

          8  in good taste, with respect to the look of the

          9  neighborhood, and that if I want to make slight

         10  changes on the size of my windows or the color of my

         11  cornice, that I will viewed just as strictly as if I

         12  were an actual historic house, which seems unfair to

         13  me.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: What is the style

         15  that is attributed to your house?

         16                 MS. AARON:  It is called neo-

         17  Georgian in the designation report, and I do not

         18  think that is any different than if I was a 19th

         19  century neo- Georgian house.

         20                 I have been assured verbally, people

         21  keep saying to my, "Oh, you have got nothing to

         22  worry about."  But I cannot really go on verbal

         23  promises.  I look at the language of the policy, and

         24  of course, it is written broadly.  It uses words

         25  like,`we will review' and`we will consider', but it
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          2  does not say,`we will treat modern houses

          3  differently than we treat actual historic houses.'

          4                 My original request was to carved out

          5  because I am on the edge of the neighborhood of the

          6  district, and it would be very simple.  In fact, one

          7  property across the street from my house that was

          8  built after my house was built, was carved out of

          9  this district but I feel if I am to be in it, then

         10  at a very minimum, there should be some language

         11  either on the designation report from my house, or

         12  in the policy that addresses my legitimate concerns.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  Does anybody

         14  have any questions?

         15                 Go ahead, Council Member Comrie.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  What is the

         17  address of your property?

         18                 MS. AARON:  I am at 689 Washington

         19  Street.  If you have pictures of all of the

         20  properties, it is a very pretty group of three

         21  little townhouses with a leafy garden in the front.

         22  It is one of the oldest looking houses in the

         23  district, but it one of the newest actually.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Are you the

         25  Weehawken or are you the other one?
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          2                 MS. AARON:  No, I am sorry, I am

          3  Washington Street.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  I mean, are

          5  you part of the Weehawken or are you part of the

          6  Greenwich?

          7                 MS. AARON:  I am part of the

          8  Greenwich Village Extension.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  We do not

         10  have that, so that is the other one.

         11                 MS. AARON:  Block 632, Lot 3.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  We have the

         13  Weehawken broken down but--.

         14                 MS. AARON:  I have a picture of the

         15  property if it is helpful.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Oh okay.  So

         17  just to continue, when you spoke to the community

         18  board about this- when has been your first level of

         19  interaction with--.

         20                 MS. AARON:  I met with Rhonda Wist of

         21  the Landmarks Commission last summer in a meeting

         22  with her and architect John Graham, and Kate Daily

         23  (phonetic), they listened but I did not see any- but

         24  they did not carve me out of the district.  I

         25  testified at the hearing last October.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Yes.

          3                 MS. AARON:  I have written a couple

          4  of emails, and letters to the City Planning

          5  Commission, and I am here today.

          6                 I have never seen any change affected

          7  by my input, but I am just doing what I can do.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  I understand,

          9  so you have been working on this for over a year,

         10  then?

         11                 MS. AARON:  I have been trying to.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  And you have

         13  never gotten any type of indication that they were

         14  willing to ameliorate any of your concerns?

         15                 MS. AARON:  Well, in the couple of

         16  conversations I have had, they have been reassuring,

         17  literally maybe two conversations, but I have not

         18  seen anything in writing that reassures me, and

         19  therefore, I do not feel that I should be able to

         20  rely on a verbal reassurance when I submit

         21  proposals, who knows who will be on the commission.

         22  It might not even be the people I am dealing with

         23  today, it just does not seem like much of a- it also

         24  seems to add language in the designation report that

         25  could be very specific.  I do not think it would set
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          2  any sort of precedent, it seems like it would be

          3  pretty easy to satisfy.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  And you said

          5  the house was built in 1980?  You built the house?

          6                 MS. AARON:  The designation report

          7  says, I think it says 1980, I have it here

          8  somewhere, 1979, 1980- 81 it says.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Yes, okay.

         10  And does not a home have to be 40 years old for it

         11  to be considered, what is the age?

         12                 MS. AARON:  I do not know.  I am not

         13  familiar with Landmarks proceedings.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  What is the

         15  time limit for the maximum or minimum time for a

         16  house to be considered historic?

         17                 MS. JACKIER:  A house must be 30

         18  years old--.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Thirty years

         20  old, okay, and if you do not mind coming back to the

         21  mic?

         22                 I am sorry Ms. Jackier, you are going

         23  to have to repeat that last statement.

         24                 MS. JACKIER:  Sure no problem.  For

         25  individual landmarks, the requirement is that a

                                                            22

          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  building be at least 30 years old, but for buildings

          3  in Historic Districts, buildings do not have to be

          4  30 years old.  The Commission can include several

          5  buildings that are less than 30 years old.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Based on what

          7  exactly?

          8                 MS. JACKIER:  Based on that fact that

          9  the District has a cohesive sense of place, and you

         10  would not want to just carve out a building because

         11  it is less than 30 years old.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Okay, you are

         13  aware of this particular property?

         14                 MS. JACKIER:  Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  And you know

         16  that the homeowner is saying that the property looks

         17  historic, and she has obviously worked to try to

         18  keep it in contextual- in context with everything

         19  else that is going on in the neighborhood, but she

         20  is concerned about her ability to make structural

         21  changes and be considered an 1800's building.

         22                 MS. JACKIER:  Right.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  She has not

         24  gotten any response from Landmarks as giving her any

         25  indication in writing.             Is that possible?
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          2                 MS. JACKIER:  I can find out if

          3  anything can be written to her to document that, but

          4  the Commission has had many conversations with this

          5  owner, and is well aware of the fact that this

          6  building was built in 1980, and would not consider

          7  this building- regulate this building, thinking that

          8  it was built in 1890.  We are well aware that it is

          9  a 1980's building.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Right, I am

         11  just concerned that she has made all of these

         12  inquiries and has not gotten any response in

         13  writing, and I think she has done due diligence in

         14  trying to number one, stay within the context of

         15  everything else in the community but have the

         16  autonomy to do what she needs to do to maintain her

         17  property.

         18                 I think, while I understand the need

         19  for designating the historical buildings, concerned

         20  that a building, even though it was built retro, it

         21  was built in 1980, is being included especially when

         22  from the lot that was cornered, it was shown to me,

         23  it could be easily extricated from the rest of the

         24  designation.

         25                 Madam Chair, I am sorry.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  I mean, I guess

          3  I have a number of questions.

          4                 One, why is it included?  Why was it

          5  included originally?

          6                 MS. JACKIER:  Because this building

          7  does contribute to the sense of place of the

          8  Historic District.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  I am looking at

         10  the designation report here, it does not indicate-

         11  it lumps together 689, 691, 693 Washington Street,

         12  and it does not distinguish particularly amongst the

         13  three.

         14                 So, if her building is somewhat

         15  different than the other two, why is that?

         16                 MS. JACKIER:  The buildings were all

         17  built at the same time.  I think there is just one

         18  picture here which is 689.

         19                 MS. AARON:  Yes, I am sorry, I can

         20  address that.

         21                 They were built by the same developer

         22  at the same time.  They were originally one tax lot.

         23    Over the years, two of the houses have made some

         24  moderations to the outside look of the property, but

         25  that is why they are lumped together.
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          2                 MR. BERMAN:  If I may just briefly

          3  interject on behalf of my organization, which

          4  advocated for the designation of the district.

          5                 From our perspective, the site is a

          6  key one, and we advocated for this site as well as

          7  other sites being included in the district because

          8  they do very much contribute to the sense of place,

          9  and if they were carved out, it could potentially

         10  have a very negative impact.

         11                 As Diane pointed out, it is a very

         12  small percentage of properties within the district

         13  that are newer. This one was, in fact, well done,

         14  rare for the time in 1980.

         15                 We also believe that it should be

         16  regulated as a structure that was built in 1980, to

         17  ensure that if there are changes that they maintain

         18  that consistency with the district. But if it is

         19  carved out of the district, that assurance would be

         20  lost.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  Well Ms.

         22  Jackier, is this considered a contributory or non-

         23  contributory?

         24                 MS. JACKIER:  It is actually sort of

         25  a misnomer that people think that something is
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          2  contributory or non contributory, that is actually

          3  not what we do for our Historic Districts.

          4                 In general, we give something a

          5  style.  So for this building, we did say its is a

          6  neo- Georgian building because if you look at the

          7  building, it looks like a neo- Georgian building.

          8  It is not that it does not have a style.  So, the

          9  Commission would regulate it.

         10                 Any changes the owner wants to make

         11  to the building, would have to come to the

         12  Commission for a permit, and it would be understood

         13  in that regulation that this building was built in

         14  1980, that it is not a one hundred year old

         15  building.

         16  The Commission is well aware of that.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  Is it going to

         18  be treated the same as the other buildings, or is it

         19  going to be treated--.

         20                 MS. JACKIER:  No, it would be treated

         21  differently, with the understanding that this is not

         22  a historic building, that the fabric on this is 26

         23  years old, it is not 126 years old.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  So, why has not

         25  anything been put in writing to the owner explaining

                                                            27

          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  that?

          3                 MS. JACKIER:  As I said, I can speak

          4  to our Executive Director and our Chief of Staff and

          5  find out if something can be sent in writing.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  You know, it

          7  seems perfectly reasonable to me to- if the

          8  Commission acknowledges that this is a property that

          9  is somewhat different because of its date of

         10  construction, and that something that the owner is

         11  asking for, who is in support of the District, but

         12  wants an assurance in terms of her particular

         13  property, that the City should be able to put that

         14  in writing to her.

         15                 MS. JACKIER:  Again, I will find out

         16  and see if something can be put in writing.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  Well, I am not

         18  sure that is going to be enough.

         19                 MS. JACKIER:  Okay.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  Council Member

         21  Barron?

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  I just- I

         23  would like for us to, recommend to us that we not

         24  vote on this until that is squared away because I

         25  think you have a very reasonable request.          I
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          2  do not think it destroys the historical, any

          3  negative historical impact if this building is not a

          4  part of the historical history of that area.  If it

          5  is a non- contributory, I know you are saying there

          6  are no such thing as contributors or non-

          7  contributors.

          8                 MS. JACKIER:  Right, right.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  But if I

         10  build a neo Georgian house now, you cannot say just

         11  because I built that style now, that it is a part of

         12  the history.  It is not.  It is just duplicated,

         13  replicated by someone who may have liked that style.

         14    That does not make it a part of the historical

         15  development of that community, and I think she has a

         16  very good point, and I think we should reconsider

         17  before we designate this that the owner is treated

         18  with the respect I think she deserves.

         19                 MR. BERMAN:  I would just like to

         20  make the Committee aware, when the designation

         21  proposal was put forward, it was part of a larger

         22  plan that also included a rezoning of the area.  The

         23  rezoning of the area purposely did not include these

         24  blocks because the understanding was that these

         25  blocks would be Landmarked, and that blocks further
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          2  west which would not necessarily be within the

          3  Landmark District, were rezoned in order to help

          4  maintain neighborhood character.

          5                 So, as part of that broader plan as

          6  well, there was the understanding that these sites

          7  would, in fact, receive this degree of regulation if

          8  it was removed from the district, there is no

          9  contextual rezoning.

         10                 So in fact, what in theory could be

         11  done, and I think Susanna is a very responsible

         12  owner, but perhaps, another owner down the road

         13  could build something that would be remarkably out

         14  of context for the area, which was what the whole

         15  plan was intended to prevent.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  Council Member

         17  Oddo.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Okay, so short

         19  of excluding the property from the District, you

         20  said you wanted certain assurances.

         21                 Could you just repeat what, in my

         22  opinion, Landmarks should have come to the table

         23  with already?

         24                 So, tell us what you want.

         25                 MS. AARON:  Okay, there are two
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          2  possibilities. One, I point out that there is a

          3  building on Charles Street near Washington that was

          4  carved out of the neighborhood because it is a big,

          5  ugly high- rise built in the 1980's style, and it

          6  was built after my house was built but of course,

          7  does not look very nice.  It is a bigger footprint

          8  than my house.

          9                 I think to myself, if you are talking

         10  about an impact on the neighborhood, I think that

         11  footprint has a bigger impact on my house and if you

         12  carved it out because it was it was on the edge, so

         13  you could easily carve out mine.  That would be one

         14  request.

         15                 If everyone feels that that could not

         16  be done, I think that it should be pretty simple to

         17  add some language in the designation report where my

         18  property is concerned, that says,`this property will

         19  be regarded differently than if it were a 19th

         20  century house.'  Something that says that in writing

         21  because understandably, the writing of policy, and I

         22  have not read it for this designation report, but I

         23  read it for the existing Greenwich Village Historic

         24  District, is broad, it is vague, it is meant to

         25  leave the discretion up to the architects who are
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          2  looking at this, and it is not meant to codify

          3  exactly what you can and cannot do.

          4                 So I would feel very reassured if

          5  there was language in the designation report, either

          6  in the policies or in the entry on my building that

          7  said,`We will view alterations to this property

          8  differently than if it were a true 19th century

          9  house.  We will give it more leeway than if it were

         10  a 19th century house'.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  But it is my

         12  understanding that the designation report cannot be

         13  altered at this point.

         14                 Could you speak to that Diane?

         15                 MS. JACKIER:  It is not something

         16  that- we could put a letter in the file, and send

         17  something to the owner.  That is what we could do.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  And that is

         19  something that I would be satisfied with.

         20                 MS. AARON:  I would be okay with

         21  that.

         22                 My concern is that the day I go to a

         23  Commission, the day I present a proposal they

         24  say,`We do not want you to change the shapes of your

         25  windows, we do not want you to change the way those
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          2  windows look."   And I say, "But what if I had been

          3  an ugly house, you would be happy that I made the

          4  windows this way".  And they would say, "Sorry but

          5  we are not going to let you do it."  I would- a

          6  letter would be fine, something that I can bring to

          7  the Commissioner and say, "Everyone knows that this

          8  was my situation, and everyone said do not worry, it

          9  will be okay." And this is a piece of paper that

         10  gives you instructions to do my property

         11  differently.  I would be fine with that.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER OODO:  Madam Chair,

         13  what I would suggest also is that at some point,

         14  when this transcript is available, you get yourself

         15  a copy of it so that the future commission sees the

         16  intent of this Council, and the intent of the

         17  current members of the LPC.

         18                 MS. AARON:  I appreciate your advise,

         19  and I very much appreciate the attention you have

         20  given to me.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  I have done-

         23  conducted a walking tour of the district, and I do

         24  understand what Mr. Berman was saying.  They do

         25  contribute a sense of place but your requests are
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          2  reasonable, so with that, I think we will close this

          3  hearing, and hold off on voting on this one

          4  particular item until tomorrow so that we can work

          5  the Commission to try to address this concern.

          6                 That said, let us move on to public

          7  on the Weehawken Street Historic District, Item

          8  Number 20065512.

          9                 Diane  Jackier from the Landmarks

         10  Preservation Commission.

         11                 MS. JACKIER:  Good morning again,

         12  council members, Diane Jackier.

         13                 On October 18th, 2005, the Landmarks

         14  Commission held a public hearing on the proposed

         15  designation of the Weehawken Street Historic

         16  District.

         17                 Thirty- three people spoke in favor

         18  of designation, including State Assembly Member

         19  Deborah Glick, and representatives of State Senator

         20  Tom Duane, State Assemblyman, Borough President

         21  Elect Scott Stringer, City Council Speaker Christine

         22  Quinn, Manhattan Community Board 2, the Municipal

         23  Arts Society, the Historic Districts' Council, the

         24  Landmarks Conservancy, the Metropolitan Chapter of

         25  the Victorian Society in America, the Greenwich
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          2  Village Society for Historic Preservation, the

          3  Society for the Architecture of the City, the

          4  Greenwich Village Community Task Force, Place

          5  Matters, Federation to Preserve the Greenwich

          6  Village Waterfront and Great Port, Westbeth Artists'

          7  Residence Council, Hell's Kitchen Neighborhood, St.

          8  Luke's Place Block Association, West 13th Street-

          9  100 Block Association, and the Perry Street Block

         10  Association.

         11                 A representative of an owner in the

         12  proposed district testified against designation.

         13                 The Commission also received numerous

         14  communications in support, including one from the

         15  Bedford- Barrow Commerce Block Association.

         16                 On May 2nd, 2006, the Commission

         17  voted to designate the Weehawken Street Historic

         18  District a New York City Historic District.

         19                 The picturesque enclave of 14

         20  buildings, and the street plan that together

         21  comprised the Weehawken Street Historic District

         22  represents several phases of construction spanning a

         23  century of development along Greenwich Village's

         24  Hudson River Waterfront, from 1830 to 1938.  The

         25  land within the district was once part of the site
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          2  of the Newgate State Prison which was built in 1796

          3  to`97, until it was closed, and the City of New York

          4  plotted and sold the land in 1829.

          5                 The City at that time planned to

          6  build a public market there, and reserved the block

          7  bounded by West Street, Christopher Street, Amos

          8  which was later West 10th Street, and the newly

          9  created block- long Weehawken Street.

         10                 The Greenwich Market House

         11  unofficially known as the Weehawken Market was not

         12  built until 1834.  It was an open wooden shed

         13  structure with wide, overhanging eves, a building

         14  type that was the most common for markets in the

         15  United States in the 19th century.  Never

         16  successful, the market was abandoned in 1844, and

         17  the property including separate sections of the

         18  market house was disposed of by the City in 1848.

         19  Numbers 392 to 393 West Street almost certainly a

         20  surviving portion of that market house was purchased

         21  by boat builder George M. Munson, and adapted and

         22  enclosed for his business.  It was as well the

         23  location until 1867 of the earliest documented

         24  liquor saloon business in the district, a dominant

         25  commercial activity here.
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          2                 The opening of a pier at the end of

          3  Christopher Street in 1828 re- instituting ferry

          4  service to Hoboken at the adaptation of part of the

          5  old prison for use as a brewery, and the

          6  construction of the Hudson River Railroad along West

          7  Street, helped to spur commercial activity in this

          8  vicinity.

          9                 After the Civil War as New York

         10  flourished as the commercial and financial center of

         11  the country, several tenements and factories were

         12  built in the area that still survive today. Among

         13  them include number 177 Christopher Street built in

         14  1883, a four- story neo- Greek style factory

         15  constructed for marine coppersmith's, H.C. and J.H.

         16  Calkin (phonetic), and the three story neo-

         17  Renaissance Holland Hotel at 396 to 397 West Street,

         18  which was built in 1903.

         19                 Commissioned by restuaranteur- saloon

         20  operator, Albert Adler (phonetic), the building is a

         21  rare surviving Hudson River Waterfront Hotel.

         22                 Today, the Weehawken Street Historic

         23  District is a unique, narrow, one- block street with

         24  a distinct sense of place. The district represents a

         25  rare surviving example of the once typical mixed-
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          2  use development pattern along Manhattan's West Side

          3  Waterfront.

          4                 The Commission urges you to affirm

          5  the designation.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  Any questions?

          7                 Thank you, and Gregory Brender and

          8  Andrew Berman had also testified in favor of this,

          9  so I assume that testimony - great.

         10                 Seeing nobody else here to testify,

         11  this hearing is closed.

         12                 We can move to a hearing on the

         13  Stewart and Company Building, Land Use Item 182,

         14  which is a individual landmark also in the Speakers'

         15  district.

         16                 MS. JACKIER:  Thank you, on October

         17  18th, 2005, the Landmarks Commission held a public

         18  hearing on the proposed designation of the Stewart

         19  and Company Building at 404 Fifth Avenue.

         20                 Three speakers testified in favor of

         21  designation, including representatives of the owner.

         22    There was no testimony in opposition.

         23                 The Commission also received letters

         24  of support from Manhattan Community Board 5, and the

         25  Friends of Terra Cotta. On April 18th, 2006, the
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          2  Commission voted to designate the building a New

          3  York City landmark.

          4                 Designed and constructed in 1914 by

          5  Warren & Wetmore for Robert W. Golet (phonetic), the

          6  Stewart and Company Building is notable for its

          7  highly unusual blue and white terra cotta exterior.

          8                 The Golet's who were major New York

          9  City property owners with holdings only second to

         10  those of the Astor's, developed the property with

         11  the woman's clothing store, Stewart and Company on

         12  the first two floors and loft space above.  During

         13  this period, the area of Fifth Avenue between 34th

         14  and 42nd Streets, was the City's most fashionable

         15  shopping district, with Stewart and Company joining

         16  the already established B. Altman, Tiffany's, and

         17  Lord and Taylor.

         18                 Stewart and Company remained in the

         19  building until 1928, when the store moved to another

         20  Warren and Wetmore design building further uptown.

         21                 Warren and Wetmore's design combines

         22  the openness and modernity of Chicago lofts, with

         23  the highly unusual color scheme and decorative

         24  vocabulary.  Similar to the Chicago school, large

         25  portions of the Stewart and Company building are
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          2  devoted to glazing, resulting in the attenuation of

          3  the solid walls of the building to a skeletal frame.

          4    The highly unusual blue and white terra cotta

          5  created by the New York Architectural Terra Cotta

          6  Company, uses forms and colors that evoke the 18th

          7  century British architects Robert and James Adam,

          8  ceramicists Josiah Wedgewood (phonetic), and a

          9  robust, contemporary interpretation of classical

         10  designs.  Adams designs had previously been the

         11  inspiration for Warren and Wetmore's 1910, Ritz-

         12  Carlton Hotel, and are echoed here in the presence

         13  of the large corner piers, with outlined forms of

         14  laurel wreathes and urns.  The terra cotta ornament

         15  also feature spandrels with large, regular fields of

         16  floral forms, column bases with egg and dart motifs,

         17  and a bracketed cornice that frames flowers in a

         18  pinwheel formation. The Commission urges you to

         19  affirm the designation.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  Thank you.

         21                 Any questions?

         22                 I do not think there is anybody

         23  signed up to testify on this item, so the hearing is

         24  closed, we can move to the hearing on the last

         25  Landmarks item, which is 2 Park Avenue, Land Use
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          2  Item Number 183.  It is Council Member Mendez's

          3  district, she is in support.

          4                 MS. JACKIER:  Thank you, again.

          5                 On October 18th, 2005, the Landmarks

          6  Commission held a public hearing on the proposed

          7  designation of 2 Park Avenue in Manhattan.

          8                 Three speakers testified in favor,

          9  there was no testimony in opposition.

         10                 The Commission also received a letter

         11  in support from Manhattan Community Board 5, and the

         12  Friends of Terra Cotta.

         13                 On April 18th, 2006, the Commission

         14  voted to designate the building a New York City

         15  landmark.

         16                 Designed by Eli Jacques Kahn of the

         17  architecture firm Buchman and Kahn, and constructed

         18  between 1926 and 1928, 2 Park Avenue is one of

         19  Kahn's masterpieces, as well as one of the earliest

         20  and most important art deco buildings in New York

         21  City. Kahn visited the 1925 Exposition International

         22  Days Art Deco Artief in Paris, and was one of the

         23  first American architects to adapt the forms of

         24  French design to architecture. Kahn developed a

         25  personal style of ornament, consisting of
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          2  interweaving forms, and large geometric masses.

          3  These appear on the building and the terra cotta

          4  decoration that accents the window spandrels and

          5  setbacks.  The terra cotta was designed with the

          6  assistance of Leon Salone (phonetic), an English

          7  ceramicist who was a significant promotor of

          8  Polychromia architecture.

          9                 Kahn's career spanned most of the

         10  first half of the 20th century, during which time he

         11  became known for his commercial structures.  He is

         12  responsible for the design of numerous tall office

         13  and loft buildings in Midtown Manhattan, especially

         14  in the Garment District, as well as factories and

         15  several houses.

         16                 In his designs, Kahn attempted to

         17  reflect the newly available and constantly changing

         18  types of materials and technology.  His traditional

         19  training at the Ecole Desole Art (phonetic) served

         20  as the framework for his approach, which combined

         21  the traditional with the modern to create the

         22  dominant architectural vocabulary of the 1920's and

         23  1930's.

         24                 Two Park Avenue is one of Kahn's most

         25  dramatic and successful works, and survives today as
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          2  one of the most beautiful and distinctive office

          3  towers of the Art Deco period.

          4                 The Commission urges you to affirm

          5  the designation.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  Thank you.

          7                 Any questions?

          8                 Council Member Comrie.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Is the

         10  building- I missed if you said if the building owner

         11  was in favor.

         12                 MS. JACKIER:  We did not receive any

         13  communication from the owner.  They were notified of

         14  the designation, and then the hearing and

         15  everything, but they did not respond or indicate

         16  what their feelings was on designation.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  And the Speaker

         18  sent a letter as well to the owner, with no

         19  response.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  What is the

         21  usage of the building at present?

         22                 MS. JACKIER:  It is an office

         23  building.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Okay, and do

         25  you know who the owner is?
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          2                 MS. JACKIER:  Yes.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Okay.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  Thank you.

          5                 This hearing is now closed.

          6                 The last item on the agenda is a new

          7  1,000 seat high school in the former Brooklyn Family

          8  Court site in David Yassky's district, Item Number

          9  20065459.

         10                 Here to testify is Jemina Bernard

         11  representing the Department of Education, Office of

         12  New Schools, and Gregory Shaw from the New York City

         13  Construction Authority.

         14                 MR. SHAW:  Good morning Chairperson

         15  Lappin and council members.

         16                 Thanks for having us today.  My name

         17  is Gregory Shaw.  I am the real estate attorney for

         18  the New York City School Construction Authority, and

         19  to my immediate left is Jemina Bernard, who is with

         20  the Office of New Schools for the New York City

         21  Department of Education.

         22                 The New York City Construction

         23  Authority has undertaken the site selection process

         24  for the proposed, approximately 1,000 seat

         25  intermediate and high schools that will be located
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          2  on tax Block 140, Lot 10 in the area of Downtown

          3  Brooklyn.  The site is located on the southeast

          4  corner of Adams Street and Johnson Street.  The

          5  proposed school site is also located in Department

          6  of Education Region Number 8, Community School

          7  District Number 13, and in Brooklyn Community Board

          8  Number 2.

          9                 The proposed site is an approximately

         10  28,255 square foot, city- owned property that was

         11  formerly used as the Brooklyn Family Court.  It is a

         12  5- story building, approximately 140,000 square

         13  feet.  The School Construction Authority intends to

         14  remove the penthouse from the top of the building

         15  and add one more floor, which will make a 6- story

         16  building for the high schools.

         17                 The notice of filing for the site

         18  plan was published in the New York Post and City

         19  Record on April 26, 2006. Brooklyn's Community Board

         20  Number 2 was also notified of the site plan on April

         21  26th.  Community Board Number 2 held a public

         22  hearing on the proposed site plan on May 10, 2006,

         23  and Community Board Number 2 subsequently sent

         24  written comments in support of the site plan.

         25                 The City Planning Commission was also
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          2  notified of the site plan on April 26th, and it also

          3  recommended in favor of the site.

          4                 The SCA has considered all comments

          5  received on the proposed site plan, and affirms the

          6  site plan pursuant to Section 1731 of the Public

          7  Authority's Law in accordance with Section 1732 of

          8  the Public Authority's Law, the SCA submitted the

          9  proposed site plan to the Mayor and Council on July

         10  12th, 2006.

         11                 We look forward to your

         12  Subcommittee's favorable consideration of the site

         13  plan.  We are now prepared to answer any questions

         14  that the Committee may have.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  I think Council

         17  Member Barron has a question.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Yes, you know

         19  I always try to separate these issues from politics,

         20  but I do recall the Mayor calling the council

         21  member, Congressman Yassky, I think he called him

         22  that twice, and now he gets a school?  I just- it is

         23  just baffling to me that now he has a school after

         24  the Mayor called him Congressman Yassky, twice.  So,

         25  I just want to make sure- I know the school was in
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          2  the working for a while before way back when, so, I

          3  just want to know, since I am running for Congress

          4  too, is it possible for me to get a school as well?

          5                 MR. SHAW:  Well, yes Sir, and I think

          6  we have already given it to you Council Member

          7  Barron.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Oh, thank you

          9  very much. I just thought I would let you say that.

         10                 Thank you very much for your--.

         11                 MR. SHAW:  You are welcome.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  So you testified

         13  this is going to be a zoned school?

         14                 MR. SHAW:  Oh well, it is going to be

         15  a high school, so that it would draw throughout

         16  Brooklyn.

         17                 MS. BERNARD:  It is actually two

         18  schools, so the plan right now is a middle school

         19  and a high school, and they will both be pulling

         20  from throughout Brooklyn.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  And how will

         22  people be admitted?

         23                 Is it through- if you could just

         24  explain the admissions policy, that would be

         25  helpful, for the high school.
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          2                 MS. BERNARD:  Sure, it will actually-

          3  the high school is the Urban Assembly School for Law

          4  and Justice, that actually already exists, it is in

          5  another building so we just plan to- it will grow

          6  out as current space.  So, it will go through the

          7  regular citywide application process, where students

          8  can rank this school along with any other 11 schools

          9  that they want to potentially enter for the ninth

         10  grade, and based on the students' rankings, based on

         11  the principals' ranking, the Central Office of

         12  Student Enrollment and Planning and Operations will

         13  make those matches.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  How large is the

         15  school currently?

         16                 MS. BERNARD:  Right now, the school

         17  is- will inherit a third ninth grade class, so it is

         18  nine through eleven right now.

         19                 Next year it will be a full ninth

         20  through twelfth school.   We anticipate that this

         21  fall it will grow to 320 students, with the incoming

         22  ninth grade.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  I just want

         24  to know, is there any opposition to this at all?  Is

         25  there any opposition?
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          2                 MR. SHAW:  I attended the Community

          3  Board Number 2 hearing, and the only questions that

          4  came up concerned intermediate seats, and they

          5  thought there was more of a need for intermediate

          6  seats.

          7                 We mentioned to them that there was

          8  also an intermediate component with this school,

          9  albeit, all girls, and that there definitely was a

         10  need for high school seats.  And other than the

         11  questions, I did not take note of any opposition.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Okay, thank

         13  you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  Thank you very

         15  much.

         16                 Council Member Comrie.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Are you- what

         18  is the age of this particular building now?

         19                 Are you demolishing it and rebuilding

         20  or are you just refurbishing?

         21                 MR. SHAW:  Yes, this will be a

         22  complete renovation of the existing structure to

         23  make it into a school facility, and adding one

         24  additional floor.  That additional floor will be no

         25  higher than the existing penthouse that is currently
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          2  on top of the building.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Okay.

          4                 MR. SHAW:  So it will be

          5  approximately 140 feet high, I believe.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Are you

          7  putting recreational facilities in the building?

          8                 MR. SHAW:  Yes, there will be a

          9  gymnasium and as much recreation facilities as we

         10  can fit in the building, along with the educational

         11  components.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  You said you

         13  are doing a junior high school from what grade to

         14  what grade?

         15                 MS. BERNARD:  It will be a sixth

         16  through twelve. So, this fall the Urban Assembly

         17  Institute of Math and Science for Young Women will

         18  open in another site, while we get this site ready.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  What is the

         20  high school?

         21                 MS. BERNARD:  The high school is the

         22  Urban Assembly School for Law and Justice.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  So, will they

         24  have separate entrances for the middle school people

         25  to come in, so that they do not necessarily mingle
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          2  with the seniors in the high school?  Or are you

          3  going to have one entrance for all grade levels?

          4                 MR. SHAW:  Right now the design for

          5  the school is not- it is in its earliest planning

          6  stages.

          7                 Of course, we will make an account

          8  for the fact that there is two different high

          9  schools, so in terms of entrances and we are, of

         10  course, aware of the fact that we have sixth,

         11  seventh and eighth graders.

         12                 So, accommodations will be made in

         13  terms of design for the school.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Is the junior

         15  high school already- did you say the junior high

         16  school is already to start in the fall?

         17                 MS. BERNARD:  In the fall.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Exactly.

         19                 MS. BERNARD:  But the high school is

         20  already is in a temporary facility?

         21                 MS. BERNARD:  That is right.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  What is going

         23  to be the breakdown in numbers between both- and the

         24  high school, what is the maximum for the high school

         25  and the maximum amount of kids for the middle
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          2  school?

          3                 MS. BERNARD:  Well, the high school

          4  is growing to its eleventh grade year this year, and

          5  we expect 320 students to be in the school, nine

          6  through eleven, this year.  We do not anticipate

          7  that this school will go above about 450 total, and

          8  then we anticipate 81 youngsters starting in the

          9  sixth grade this fall for the middle school, and

         10  then we are going to have to work out the enrollment

         11  numbers as we do the planning at the same time that

         12  we work with the SCA in terms of the design for the

         13  school to accommodate the number of seats.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Okay, and the

         15  middle school is stickily for Brooklyn children

         16  also, or is that- can you apply from anywhere in the

         17  City?

         18                 MS. BERNARD:  I have to look into

         19  that for you.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  All right, I

         21  am sorry, they did not say your title, they just

         22  said you were with DOE or school--.

         23                 MS. BERNARD:  Sure, I most recently

         24  was Executive Director of the Office of Parent

         25  Engagement at the Department of Education, and now I
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          2  have moved over to the Office of New Schools, where

          3  I am the Chief Operating Officer.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Okay, well

          5  they did not say your title earlier, I just wanted

          6  to make sure your got the opportunity to tell

          7  everybody.

          8                 MS. BERNARD:  Thank you.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  Council Member

         11  Arroyo.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  Thank you,

         13  Madam Chair.

         14                 An all girls middle school, how many

         15  is the total enrollment once the school grows from

         16  their coming in to the sixth?

         17                 MS. BERNARD:  Yes, so this fall they

         18  start with the sixth grade, and so far, we have 81

         19  students expected to attend the school.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  And they go

         21  to the eighth?

         22                 MS. BERNARD:  It will ultimately be a

         23  sixth through twelfth school.  So, it will be a

         24  secondary school.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  Okay, so what
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          2  is the continuum, if the middle school is all girls,

          3  what is the high school?

          4                 MS. BERNARD:  The high school is co-

          5  ed.  So it is two different schools that will be

          6  housed in the building, the high school is co- ed.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  And why do

          8  you need 1,000 seats?  Because I do not hear those

          9  numbers adding up.

         10                 Do you plan to do something else in

         11  the future that you are you are not telling us about

         12  now?

         13                 MR. SHAW:  No, I think as I

         14  understood it was that we have two different high

         15  schools, one high school has a component of an

         16  intermediate school, which is like six through

         17  twelve, and then we have a separate high school

         18  which will be co ed.  So think of it as two

         19  different high schools, one high school including an

         20  intermediate component which is all female.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  Okay so now

         22  you are going to give me new numbers?

         23                 Two high schools, what are the

         24  numbers for each? This is a small village, this

         25  1,000 seats.
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          2                 MS. BERNARD:  That is right.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  And my

          4  concern, as always, I am not familiar with the

          5  neighborhood, what is the capacity for the

          6  neighborhood to handle this number of individuals at

          7  any given time of the day in another three years?

          8  It sounds like it would be at capacity.

          9                 MS. SHAW:  Well, granted Downtown

         10  Brooklyn is extremely crowded, we have other high

         11  schools.

         12                 I mean, the capacity to handle the

         13  individuals within the area, I think, is there.  I

         14  mean, it is a dense area but I do not think 1,000

         15  students is going to be a problem, given the time

         16  that they are coming, and the time that they leave.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  So, when you

         18  went before the local community board--.

         19                 MR. SHAW:  Yes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: -- were you as

         21  clear with these numbers as you have been with us

         22  because we are just--.

         23                 MR. SHAW:  Absolutely.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: -- I am

         25  hearing one set of numbers, but the number of seats
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          2  is 1,000 and it does not- you are not speaking to

          3  those numbers here.

          4                 MR. SHAW:  The capacity for the

          5  building is approximately 1,000 seats.  If you look

          6  in your documents in the paperwork that we provided

          7  you, it is approximately 1,075 seats which would

          8  include the special ed students.  We usually have a

          9  special ed component normally, and so that is where

         10  the 75 seats comes from.

         11                 We were very clear, I attended the

         12  Community Board meeting Number 2, and Josh Thomas

         13  who is affiliated with the Office Of New Schools

         14  explained in detail just as Ms. Bernard has done the

         15  fact that two high schools, the fact that it was

         16  going to be sixth through twelve for females, and

         17  that the other high school would be a co- ed.  There

         18  was no subterfuge of our part, and we were very

         19  clear in terms of what we were presenting, as we are

         20  attempting to do today.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  You confused

         22  me, so I am not sure about that.

         23                 Thank you, Madam Chair.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  Council Member

         25  Comrie.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  That is a

          3  very busy intersection.

          4                 Is not that the intersection just

          5  before you go on the Brooklyn Bridge?

          6                 MR. SHAW:  No, it is further down.

          7  It is actually next to- it is down from the Brooklyn

          8  Bridge, it is right next to the Marriott Hotel.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Right, it is

         10  right next to the Marriott?  That building right

         11  next to the Marriott?

         12                 MR. SHAW:  Yes.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Because it

         14  showed it as a corner, so it just- so that is on

         15  that same block.

         16                 MR. SHAW:  Yes, yes it is.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  And where

         18  will bus access be for that?

         19                 Are they going to come down that

         20  Adams Street, and then drop off in front of--?

         21                 MR. SHAW:  Yes, there is- if you are

         22  familiar with the area, and I am sure you are, on

         23  Adams Street there is a little side--.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Very

         25  congested, two- way.
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          2                 MR. SHAW:  Right, yes it is, and I

          3  mean granted it is a congested area.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Well, there

          5  is a problem with permanent parking there also.

          6                 MR. SHAW:  But given that the

          7  majority of the seats are going for both high

          8  schools, we would anticipate most of those kids will

          9  not be taking buses, they will be taking public

         10  transportation.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Okay, so you

         12  do not expect much school bus drop off because I was

         13  looking at your--.

         14                 MS. SHAW:  No, we would not

         15  anticipate much activity in that area, even for the

         16  intermediate seats which will probably be taken

         17  locally.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Right, but I

         19  see you have on here on page 612 that you are going

         20  to have school bus vans for the District 75.

         21                 MR. SHAW:  That is correct, for the

         22  special ed students.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Three in the

         24  afternoon, and three in the morning primarily, okay.

         25
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          2                 I am just concerned knowing that area

          3  as I do, it is very congested over there to do any

          4  vehicular traffic, and trying to ease as bus down

          5  that street in the morning is not- it is going to be

          6  a challenge only for the traffic going towards the

          7  bridge, and the traffic that is double- parking

          8  going into the hotel, so it is challenging.

          9                 When are you going to do the work

         10  there?  That is going to be off- peak hour work as

         11  well to do the construction and reconstruction.

         12                 MR. SHAW:  We intend to start

         13  construction fairly soon.  We are looking at a

         14  school opening for September 2008, so that just

         15  gives us two years.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Okay, all

         17  right, but it is not the corner building, it is the

         18  building right next to the Marriott because there is

         19  construction going on now at the Marriott now, and

         20  there is other construction going on, I think, on

         21  that block also.  Is not there a court house that

         22  they are working on on that block, or is that the

         23  Federal court house?

         24                 MR. SHAW:  I believe yes, that is the

         25  Federal court house.
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          2                 We are aware of the Marriott's

          3  construction, and we have accounted for that but

          4  keep in mind, the majority of the construction for

          5  this site, although there will be some exterior work

          6  naturally, a majority of the work is in the

          7  interior.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Okay, all

          9  right.

         10                 Thank you, Madam Chair.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  And there is a

         12  page here, I mean, all of this was laid out in the

         13  EIS in terms of traffic and --.

         14                 MR. SHAW:  Yes, and mitigation

         15  matters, measures, right.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  So, just to join

         17  in with my colleagues concerns, I would certainly

         18  hope and assume that this page and a half of

         19  potential traffic mitigations will be employed.

         20                 Is that correct?

         21                 MR. SHAW:  Absolutely.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  Okay, this

         23  hearing is closed.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 MR. SHAW:  Thank you very much.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN:  With that, I

          3  would like to ask the counsel to call the roll on

          4  all items, except for the Preconsidered Greenwich

          5  Street Historic District Extension, which will be

          6  laid over until tomorrow morning at 9:30 a.m., and I

          7  recommend a favorable vote on all other items on the

          8  agenda.

          9                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Chair

         10  Lappin.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  Aye.

         12                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Council

         13  Member Barron.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Aye.

         15                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Council

         16  Member Comrie.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Aye.

         18                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Council

         19  Member Palma.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA:  Aye.

         21                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Council

         22  Member Arroyo.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  Yes.

         24                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Council

         25  Member Oddo.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Yes.

          3                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  The vote

          4  stands at six in the affirmative, none in the

          5  negative, and no abstentions.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  This meeting

          7  will be recessed until tomorrow morning 9:30 a.m.,

          8  because we have a Land Use hearing tomorrow at 10

          9  a.m.

         10                 (Hearing concluded at 11:55 a.m.)
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